
 

 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA 
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD 
HAVANT 
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX 
 

Telephone: 023 9247 4174 
Fax: 023 9248 0263 
Website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

Membership:      Councillor P Bains (Mayor) 
 
Councillors Jenner, Inkster, Patel, Thain-Smith, Robinson, Bains, Bowerman, 
Briggs, Branson, Carpenter, Crellin, Davis, Francis, Guest, Hart, Howard, Hughes, 
Keast, Kennett, Lowe, Lloyd, Milne, Patrick, Pike, Raines (Deputy Mayor), Rennie, 
Robinson, Satchwell, Sceal, Scott, Mrs Shimbart, Smith K, Thomas, Turner, Wade, 
Weeks and Wilson 
 

 

Meeting: Council 

Date: Wednesday 9 September 2020 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Venue: Skype for Business - Skype for Business 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
David Brown 
Monitoring Officer 
 
1 September 2020 
 
Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098 
 Email:  DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk 
 

  Page 

PART 1 (Items open for public attendance) 
 

 

1  Apologies for Absence, Confirmation of Attendance and 
Declarations of Interest   
 
After noting any apologies for absence, Members will be asked to 
confirm their attendance and state any declarations of interest that 
they may have. 
 
 

 

2  Havant Borough Local Plan: Changes to the Pre-Submission 
Local Plan   

1 - 12 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 

 
ii 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231 
 
Internet 
 
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
Public Attendance  
 
Members of the public are welcome to follow the meeting via the following 
link (please select the green ‘Join the Event’ button):  
 
https://join-
emea.broadcast.skype.com/havant.gov.uk/188e5499e5ea4b5fabd2737358d26337/e
n-US/ 

Public 
Service 
Plaza 

http://www.havant.gov.uk/
https://join-emea.broadcast.skype.com/havant.gov.uk/188e5499e5ea4b5fabd2737358d26337/en-US/
https://join-emea.broadcast.skype.com/havant.gov.uk/188e5499e5ea4b5fabd2737358d26337/en-US/
https://join-emea.broadcast.skype.com/havant.gov.uk/188e5499e5ea4b5fabd2737358d26337/en-US/


 

 
iii 

 
 

PROTOCOL AT COUNCIL MEETING – AT A GLANCE 
 
Sit or Stand? 
 
Stand to address the Council/Mayor at all times 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 always address each other as “Councillor …” 

 a motion or amendment has to be proposed and seconded 

 once an amendment has been proposed and seconded, it becomes the subject 
of the debate until it is either accepted or rejected by a vote 

 a seconder can choose to make their speech at a later time 

 only one Councillor to stand at any one time 

 speeches will not exceed 5 minutes (the Council can resolve to allow additional 
time, which will not exceed a further 3 minutes) 

 a Councillor proposing the adoption of a Committee/Board minute has sufficient 
time to propose and unlimited time to reply to debate 

 a Councillor can only speak again on an amendment, to move a further 
amendment, on a point of order or personal explanation. 

 
Questions and Motions 
 

 Motions must be submitted in writing (or by email) to the Democratic Services 
Team Leader 6 working days prior to the Council meeting 

 Councillors may ask questions, without notice, of the Leader and Cabinet 
Leads in respect of the Cabinet Lead reports submitted to Council 

 Councillors may ask questions of the Leader, Cabinet Leads and Committee 
Chairmen, on any matter affect the Borough or its residents, providing that: 

o 48 hours written notice is given; or 
o 2 hours written notice in relation to urgent matters 

 
Voting 
 

 Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the Mayor 

 Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those 
voting be recorded in the minutes 

 A recorded vote will always be taken in respect of approval of the Annual 
Budget 

 Councillors may not vote unless they are in the meeting for the full debate on 
any particular item 

 A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes 

 
 



 

 
iv 

 
 

 



 

 

NON EXEMPT  
                

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Full Council  9 September 2020 

 
HAVANT BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN: CHANGES TO THE PRE-
SUBMISSION LOCAL PLAN 
 
Planning Policy Manager  

 
FOR DECISION 
 
Portfolio: Cabinet Lead for Planning, Hayling Seafront Strategy and 
Commercial Services 
  
Head of Service: Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Key Decision: Yes 

 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
1.1. To set out progress on the Havant Borough Local Plan since the approval of 

the Pre-Submission Local Plan on 30th January 20191, to seek approval of 
changes to that plan and to authorise consultation on those changes prior to 
the submission of the plan to Government for its Examination. 

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1. That the Cabinet recommends to Full Council that it: 

 
i. Approves the publication of the changes to the Pre-Submission Havant 

Borough Local Plan (Appendix A); 

ii. Approves the consultation on the changes on the Pre-Submission 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Appendix A); 

iii. Authorises the Planning Policy Manager2, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Lead for Planning Regeneration and Communities2 and the 
Cabinet Lead for Communications2 to prepare relevant consultation 
material; 

iv. Delegates authority to the Planning Policy Manager2, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Lead for Planning, Regeneration and Communities2 to 
make any necessary additional changes to the Havant Borough Local 
Plan prior to the start of the consultation;  

                                                 
1 Agenda, papers and minutes are available at 
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=10792&Ver=4  
2 Or successor in similar or equivalent role 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=10792&Ver=4


 

 

v. Notes that following any approval under (i) the changes to the Havant 
Borough Local Plan would have material planning weight and would be 
a material consideration in decision making; 

vi. Notes the publication of the additional submission documents (the 
Sustainability Appraisal, the Habitats Regulations Assessment, 
Integrated Impact Assessment, evidence base, Statements of Common 
Ground); 

vii. Notes the Borough’s five year housing land supply position as of 
December 2019 (available at www.havant.gov.uk/localplan/evidence-
base);  

viii. Notes the change in title of the plan to “Havant Borough Local Plan” and 
the resultant need to amend any emerging Council strategies; 

ix. Delegates authority to the Planning Policy Manager2 to prepare a report, 
which forms one of the required documents to submit to the Secretary 
of State, noting the number of representations made through the 
consultation (recommendation ii) and a summary of the main issues 
raised; 

x. Approves the submission of the Havant Borough Local Plan, including 
the proposed changes, to the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government following the consultation (ii) and 
the publication of the consultation report (vi); and 

xi. Delegates authority to the Planning Policy Manager1 to prepare a 
schedule(s) of proposed changes for the Planning Inspector to consider 
before and/or throughout the examination of the Local Plan. 

3.0 Executive Summary  
 

3.1. The Local Plan remains one of the most important functions of the Borough 
Council. Whilst there have been extensive changes to the planning system in 
recent years, this has only emphasised the role of the Local Plan in the 
development process in the UK and increased the necessity of having an up-
to-date Local Plan. 
 

3.2. A local plan is an overarching strategy shaping the Borough of Havant as a 
place. It is not merely a collection of development sites but instead a high 
level strategy for development of the Borough as a whole. It is for this reason 
that the first sections of the plan deal with key projects, critical to the delivery 
of the strategy, together with policies on infrastructure provision and 
environmental protection. The plan should of course be read as a whole and 
it is only after these policies that one finds development allocations. 
Collectively, these provide for housing need, economic growth and 
environmental sites.  
 

3.3. The Council highlights the importance of an up-to-date Local Plan in the 
Corporate Strategy. On 7th November 2018, the Council also approved and 
adopted the Opportunity Havant Regeneration Strategy. This clearly sets out 
the Council’s commitment to the regeneration of the Borough, the priority of 
the initial projects and the drive to see delivery of regeneration schemes on 
the ground. 

 

Page 2



 

 

3.4. The Local Plan is intrinsically linked to the Regeneration Strategy and the 
Council’s wider goals regarding regeneration. It is a key mechanism for 
moving the sites in the strategy forwards towards delivery by setting out the 
principles for the development of the sites and reinforcing the message to the 
investment market that Havant Borough is open for business. 
 
Update following Cabinet meeting 

3.5. The Cabinet met and considered this item on 1 July 2020. Through that 
meeting five deputations were considered, three of which were heard 
verbally by the Cabinet during the meeting. Questions of officers and debate 
then followed. The Cabinet unanimously resolved to propose the 
recommendations in Section 2 of this report for Full Council for approval. 
 

3.6. Since that meeting, the date of the Full Council meeting has been confirmed 
(9 September 2020). This has enabled officers to update the Local 
Development Scheme. This is now available on the Council’s website at 
www.havant.gov.uk/localplan and sets out the aim to submit the Local Plan 
to Government by the end of calendar year 2020.  
 

3.7. The Government have since published changes to the planning system, in 
particular the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) 
(England) Regulations 2020 which comes into force on the 1 September 
2020 significantly amend The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 1987 (as amended). These amendments necessitate changes to the 
text of the Local Plan where use classes are referred to, focussed on town 
centre policies. For reasons of pragmatism, it is proposed that such changes 
are undertaken through agreement with the Cabinet Lead (see 
recommendation iv) prior to the start of the consultation. Those changes 
would retain the overall approach of the Pre-Submission Local Plan, within 
the scope of the Government’s changes. 
 

3.8. The Government has also proposed large scale changes to the Planning 
System through the White Paper Planning For the Future3. The proposals 
are currently out to consultation and the existing system remains in force 
until any replacement primary and secondary legislation, together with a 
replacement NPPF, are approved by Government and come into force. The 
changes proposed to the planning system are substantial and would change 
the nature of Local Plans and the development management process. 
 

3.9. It is proposed that the Council continue to progress the emerging Havant 
Borough Local Plan to submission, examination and adoption. The White 
Paper recognises that a number of Local Planning Authorities, such as 
Havant Borough Council, are in the advanced stages of plan-making and that 
this should not be hampered. Transitional arrangements are proposed to that 
effect. If the Council progresses in a timely manner, as is proposed in the 
Local Development Scheme, it would be possible to comply with the 
transitional arrangements. 
 

3.10. This further emphasises the need to submit the plan as quickly as possible 
now that all evidence base is complete and a solution is in place to enable all 
development to be nutrient neutral. There will only be a limited period for 
submission to take place under the transitional arrangements. 
 

                                                 
3 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future  

Page 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future


 

 

3.11. As the new planning system is introduced, the Council will be in a far better 
position with an up-to-date, recently adopted Local Plan than relying on the 
current Local Plan, which pre-dates the NPPF. As such, it is recommended 
that the Local Plan continues to move forward as swiftly as possible. 
 

3.12. A revised Position Statement on Nutrient Neutrality was published on 18 
August 2020 which introduces the Council’s Warblington Farm Nutrient 
Mitigation Scheme4. This Scheme involves the repurposing of Warblington 
Farm from its current agricultural use to uses that achieve a lower nutrient 
load of the land. Further details are provided in sections 3.34-3.38 below and 
in the Position Statement. Details regarding the land transaction were 
approved through the Cabinet decision of 3 June 20205. This scheme 
creates a long-term project which will lead to multiple benefits for the 
Borough and unlocks a situation which has led to the Council not being able 
to lawfully permit any planning applications that are not nutrient neutral since 
April 2019. 
 

3.13. Until now, it has been a requirement for a physical copy of the Pre-
Submission Local Plan to be available for inspection during normal office 
hours during the consultation6. The Government have recently amended 
those regulations to remove that obligation, on a temporary basis, to take 
account of the COVID-19 pandemic7. 

 
The need for development and for a Local Plan to guide it 

3.14. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out Government’s 
policies and priorities regarding development and the planning system. This 
is the first Local Plan the Council has prepared in line with the NPPF. The 
NPPF includes a requirement for Local Authorities to produce local plans 
which fully met the need for development in their area. 
 

3.15. Since the first NPPF’s introduction in 2012, successive Governments have 
made clear that significantly increasing the supply of housing is a national 
priority and that the planning system has to address this. The need for 
housing in the Borough is clear in order to address the needs of a growing 
and aging population. New development is inevitable and every part of the 
Borough will inevitably see housebuilding taking place in the coming years. 

 
3.16. The NPPF requires authorities to meet the need for new homes, to have a 

five year supply of deliverable housing sites and to assist nearby local 
authorities less able to meet the need for development, as part of the duty to 
cooperate.  

 
3.17. As such, it changes the question before the Council and the Borough’s 

communities. It is no longer a question of whether development should 
happen. It is instead whether the benefits that the development can bring 
should be grasped. If development is to take place, it should be of a high 
quality and stand the test of time, it should include the infrastructure 
necessary to mitigate its impact, and it should preserve and enhance our 
built and natural environments. 

                                                 
4 https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=414 
5 https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=11072&Ver=4 
6 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/35/made 
7 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/731/regulation/2/made  

Page 4

https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=414
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=11072&Ver=4
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/35/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/731/regulation/2/made


 

 

 
3.18. The Council has historically prioritised having an up-to-date Local Plan so 

that development decisions could be made locally and shaped to meet our 
needs. The Borough’s existing Local Plan is the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) and the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations Plan). 
However the Local Plan is now out-of-date. This was confirmed through a 
planning appeal in Purbrook in the summer of 2016. 

 
3.19. A new local plan, which accepts the quantity of development needed and 

allocates sites for it, will put the Council in the best position to influence 
inevitable development. It will mean that development can be directed away 
from sites that are genuinely unsustainable, that development quality can be 
pushed up and that infrastructure is provided. 

 
 
 
The consequences of not having an up-to-date Local Plan  

3.20. A Local Plan will help to realise the benefits of development and make sure 
that the new development that is inevitable maximises the benefits that 
development can bring the Borough. The adopted Local Plan can no longer 
do this as it was produced under the previous national planning system. 
 

3.21. Without a new Local Plan, it is not possible to exert the necessary influence 
over new development to ensure that it comes forward at the correct quality, 
that infrastructure is put in place and that environmental safeguards are 
provided.  

 
3.22. The Borough risks development being permitted through the planning appeal 

process. This would put at risk the quality of that development, reduce the 
likelihood of infrastructure being provided, and weaken the environmental 
safeguards that are proposed through the Local Plan. This has been the 
case in the past in Havant Borough with the decision at appeal to allow 131 
dwellings at ‘Land North of Goldring Close’8. More recently, at London Road, 
Purbrook, an appeal was allowed for a housing site on a former employment 
area. In making the decision, the inspector determined that the provision of 
housing, and the lack of a five year housing land supply, overrode the 
retention of the employment site. In our neighbouring local authority of East 
Hampshire, several planning appeals were allowed due to the fact that the 
local authority had not met the need for housing and was not maintaining a 
sufficient five year housing land supply.  

 
3.23. Ultimately, the need for development is such that sites where development 

was resisted only a few years ago are now having to be identified for 
development. Further new sites are needed on top of those previously 
considered sites and no stone can be left unturned in looking for sites that 
can provide sustainable development. 

 
The development of the Havant Borough Local Plan  

3.24. Work on the new Local Plan started at the beginning of 2016. The important 
milestone of the Pre-Submission Consultation took place in 2019. This 

                                                 
8 Application APP/12/00966, overturned by appeal APP/X1735/A/13/2192777, Land North of 
Goldring Close and My Lords Lane, East of St Margarets Road and South of Beech Grove 
and Hawthorne Grove, Hayling Island 

Page 5



 

 

followed a number of previous stages of consultation with the Borough’s 
communities and extensive research into the issues which face the Borough 
and so need to be addressed through the plan. 
 

3.25. It is for the same reasons that it is imperative to progress with the new Local 
Plan for the Borough as quickly as possible. The same consequences of not 
having a Local Plan will also apply if one is not progressed as quickly as 
possible. The Council has a legal responsibility to determine planning 
applications that are submitted. It is not possible to delay their determination 
or prevent them being submitted and refusal on grounds of prematurity 
towards the Local Plan preparation process is not possible other than in 
exceptional circumstances. 

 
3.26. Whilst there has been a need to delay the submission of the Local Plan while 

the Council puts in place a strategy to respond to the requirements of The 
Dutch Case (see below), this is now coming into place. As such, it is 
necessary to consult on the changes necessary to the Local Plan, submit it 
to Government to examine and ultimately adopt it as soon as possible. 
 
The need for changes to the Pre-Submission Local Plan  

3.27. Since the approval of the Pre-Submission Local Plan, external factors and 
continuing discussions with statutory stakeholders have led to officers 
considering a number of proposed changes to the plan. These are set out in 
a tracked changes version of the Pre-Submission Local Plan at Appendix A. 

 
3.28. Some of the changes required new or substantially revised policies. These 

require sustainability appraisal. As such, it is particularly important that they 
are subject to public consultation and then submitted as part of the local plan 
to the Secretary of State. More minor changes could have been submitted to 
the Inspector for them to consider when examining the plan. 
 

3.29. This will enable the Planning Inspectorate to undertake the examination on a 
consolidated version of the Local Plan, including the proposed changes. The 
more significant changes, those that in and of themselves require 
sustainability appraisal, have been specifically highlighted with change 
references in Appendix A.  

 
3.30. For completeness, approval of the full suite of proposed changes is sought 

together with approval to consult on them. Nonetheless, this does not 
remove the approval and authorisation of the Pre-Submission Local Plan in 
2019 together with the strategy, policies and sites that it contains. Approval 
of these recommendations would sit alongside the existing approval of the 
overall Pre-Submission Local Plan on 30 January 2019, forming one 
consolidated plan to be submitted for examination. 

 
3.31. As the consultation would be under the same regulation as that which took 

place in 2019, the consultation would be carried out in a similar way and the 
same questions asked. Nonetheless, officers will be able to use the 
experience of how the 2019 consultation was received to improve the layout 
of the consultation form to make it easier to fill in.  

 
3.32. It should be noted that the focus of the consultation will be on the changes 

proposed.  It is not the purpose of this consultation to open up the whole plan 
for comment again.  Consultation material will make clear that comments 

Page 6



 

 

previously made will still stand, and that all representations received in 2019 
will be passed to the inspector for examination. 

 
3.33. Following the consultation on the changes, a report would need to be 

prepared setting out the number of representations made and the main 
issues raised. The plan would then be submitted to the Secretary of State for 
examination. 

 
The ‘Dutch Case’ 

3.34. Since the consultation of the Pre-Submission Local Plan last year, the full 
implications of the Dutch Case, a judgement of the European Court of 
Justice, has come to light9.It relates to the impact of additional nutrient loads 
in the harbours, including from development, and  has had a significant 
impact across the Solent in terms of the ability to grant planning permission 
for residential development. This has been considered extensively at the 
Partnership for South Hampshire’s Joint Committee10 and the Cabinet’s 
decision to approve a Position Statement on Nutrient Neutral Development in 
June 201911. 

 
3.35. Responding to this issue has delayed the production of the Local Plan. This 

means that there would no longer be a 15 year time horizon from the period 
of adoption. As a result, the plan period will need to be extended to 31st 
March 2037. This results in substantive changes to the plan, including the 
development trajectory and an increase in the need for development to 
accommodate the additional year. Following this, the title of the plan should 
also be amended, to simply “Havant Borough Local Plan”.  

 
3.36. Some of the key proposed changes to the Havant Borough Local Plan 

respond to The Dutch Case and include measures which ensure that it can 
be overcome. 

 
3.37. It has been confirmed that a mitigation package will be needed to support 

any development resulting in a net increase in overnight accommodation. 
This is principally residential development but also includes hotels, care 
homes and some other scheme. Furthermore, some particularly water 
intensive commercial development may be affected. 

 
3.38. Since the Cabinet’s consideration of this item, a revised Position Statement 

has been approved which includes a mitigation scheme. The position 
statement and accompanying information, both for residents and the 
development industry, are at www.havant.gov.uk/nitrogen.  

 
Statements of Common Ground with key stakeholders 

3.39. Officers have engaged with a number of key statutory stakeholders in the 
Local Plan throughout the production of the plan. Discussions in 2019 
focussed on the responses to the Pre-Submission consultation and whether 
any concerns could be overcome. This has led to a number of proposed 

                                                 
9 Full reference is Cooperatie Mobilisation for the Environment UA and College van 

gedeputeerde staten van Noord-Brabant (Case  C-293/17 and C294/17) available at 
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=CELEX:62017CA0293 
10 See Joint Committee meetings for July 2019, October 2019 and February 2020, available 
at https://www.push.gov.uk/work/our-meetings/joint-committee/  
11 Report and minutes available at 
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=10857&Ver=4  

Page 7

http://www.havant.gov.uk/nitrogen
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=CELEX:62017CA0293
https://www.push.gov.uk/work/our-meetings/joint-committee/
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=10857&Ver=4


 

 

changes to the plan which substantially reduce the concerns from those key 
stakeholders. This should make the examination simpler. 

 
3.40. These discussions have been noted through Statements of Common 

Ground. These have been published at www.havant.gov.uk/localplan.  
 
Transport Assessments 

3.41. There are two transport assessments which support the Havant Borough 
Local Plan. The first covers the mainland section of the Borough and the 
second covers Hayling Island and the A3023 corridor. 
 

3.42. As part of the considerations at Cabinet and Council in 2019, officers were 
instructed to publish version 2 of both of these transport assessments prior to 
the submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State. 

 
3.43. The version 2 of the mainland transport assessment takes the form of a 

study into the need for the strategic link from Southleigh to the Warblington 
junction onto the A27. This study is ongoing and will be published prior to 
submission. However regardless of the findings of the study, no changes to 
the Local Plan would be needed to enact this as it already safeguards the 
land for the link. 

 
3.44. Version 2 of the Hayling Island Transport Assessment takes the form of an 

addendum to the original study. This has now been published. The 
Addendum consolidates the proposed mitigation measures into a single 
preferred package. Some of the measures fall outside what would be 
specifically required from new development, reflecting how the Hayling Island 
Transport Assessment has gone beyond what is required as part of the 
evidence base work for a local plan and forms an informal strategy for the 
development and improvement of the island’s transport network. 
 
Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic 

3.45. It is absolutely correct to consider the restrictions which remain in place as a 
result of the pandemic together with changes to everyday life and the 
economy that could have more lasting impacts. 
 

3.46. An analysis has taken place as to whether any changes are required to the 
Local Plan or its policies to help our communities respond to the pandemic 
and adapt to a ‘new normal’. It was concluded that no changes are needed. 
However the pandemic and its effects reiterates the need for a number of 
measures being introduced for the first time through this Local Plan. 
 

3.47. These include the need for minimum space sizes of new dwellings and 
requirements for outdoor space, to support residents’ health and wellbeing 
and allow for space to work if confined to the home either by choice or as 
more employers encourage or require home working.. Enhanced 
infrastructure in the form of sustainable travel routes and healthy and safe 
off-road cycling and walking infrastructure could also be considered even 
more necessary as a result of the pandemic. 

 
Other evidence base which has been updated 

3.48. Alongside the evidence base set out above, there have been further updates 
and changes to ensure that it is up-to-date and robust: 
i. Local Green Spaces in Havant Borough 
ii. A compliance statement with the 2019 NPPF 

Page 8

http://www.havant.gov.uk/localplan


 

 

iii. Employment Land Review 2019 update 
iv. Five year supply and housing need summary 
v. Update to the Specialist Housing Analysis 
vi. Update to the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
vii. Update to the Town Centres Study 
 
The need to maintain a five year supply of housing delivery and 
continue to make decisions 

3.49. Significantly boosting the supply of housing is a key consideration for 
Government and this is highlighted through the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

3.50. Key to the Government’s drive to boost the supply of housing is the 
requirement for all areas of the country to have a five year rolling supply of 
housing land. A five year supply update was published in December 2019 
and confirms that the Borough currently has a five year supply. Nonetheless, 
it also highlights that there is a need to maintain this moving forward. It also 
highlights the need to take any steps possible to facilitate the delivery of 
housing development as the Council is now also assessed under the 
Housing Delivery Test. 

 
3.51. Several development schemes have come forward which came from their 

identification in the Local Plan Housing Statement or the Pre-Submission 
Local Plan.  
 

3.52. Other sites in the Pre-Submission Local Plan, are also needed in order to 
maintain a five year housing land supply. As such, the Council will need to 
continue to determine any applications which come forward before the 
adoption if the plan. The NPPF sets out that it is not possible to refuse 
planning permission due to prematurity unless there are exceptional 
circumstances, which are not considered to apply here. 

 
3.53. Nonetheless, the Council wrote to Government in January to seek relief from 

the Five Year Supply and Housing Delivery Test requirements, on the basis 
that need for development to be nutrient neutral significantly restricts the 
ability for the Council to grant planning permission for schemes12. However 
the Government are not proposing to make such an exception, nor as a 
result of any slowdown in housing delivery as a result of the pandemic. 

 
Consultation arrangements 
If approved by the Full Council, the consultation on the changes to the Pre-
Submission Havant Borough Local Plan would take place shortly thereafter.  
 

3.54. The plan, with changes highlighted and change references marked out, will 
form the basis of the consultation. A consultation form and guidance will also 
be prepared to help stakeholders respond. This will highlight that the 
consultation is only on the changes and that it is not necessary to resubmit 
comments made in 2019. 
 

3.55. Some elements of the consultation will have to be run differently from usual 
consultation periods, due to Coronavirus restrictions. Due to the closure of 

                                                 
12 This letter was included in the material that was considered by the Operations and Place 
Shaping Board on 28 January 2020, pages 29-32 in the report pack at 
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=10958 

Page 9

https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=10958


 

 

the Council’s principal office, the Public Service Plaza, it will not be possible 
to have a copy of the Local Plan available for inspection. If this changes 
throughout the consultation then one will be made available. Officers will of 
course also not be available to answers questions in person. If any residents 
have queries about the local plan, officers will be available to answer them 
by phone and email while FAQs will also be made available. It is considered 
that appropriate access to information and opportunity to engage is possible 
even with the restrictions in place.  For any individuals who may find the 
arrangements more challenging, many groups also exist which represent the 
Borough’s communities and who can, and already do, engage in planning 
matters and who residents can join and engage with to ensure their voices 
are heard. 
 

3.56. However it should be stressed that the proposed consultation is a targeted 
consultation on the changes and at a late stage in the plan’s production. It is 
not comparable to earlier consultations where maximum engagement on all 
matters was encouraged and significant outreach was planned as a result.  

 
Next steps and the examination of the Local Plan  

3.57. If approved by the Full Council, following the public consultation, officers will 
prepare a summary of the main issues raised, as required by the regulations. 
 

3.58. This, alongside all of the required documents, would then be submitted to the 
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

 
3.59. The Secretary of State (in practice the Planning Inspectorate) will then 

appoint an inspector to undertake an examination of the Local Plan. 
 

3.60. It is expected that the Local Plan would be submitted to the Secretary of 
State in quarter 4 of calendar year 2020. Subject to and following the 
examination, the plan would be adopted by the Council the following 
summer. 

 
4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications  

 
4.1. There is no additional cost proposed over and above the budget. The delay 

to the local plan process as a result of the pandemic will result in less 
expenditure on the examination in the current financial year. 

 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Directorate 

Business Plan(s) 
 

5.1 There are extensive links between the Local Plan and the emerging 
Corporate Strategy and Regeneration Strategy specifically. The Local Plan 
forms a key delivery mechanism for the Corporate Strategy, promoting and 
facilitating the development and economic growth which is necessary to 
improve the prosperity of the borough’s residents. 

 
5.2 In particular, the Local Plan is intrinsically linked to the recently adopted 

Regeneration Strategy and two are heavily linked. The inclusion of the sites in 
a Local Plan is essential to bring them forward and particularly if looking 
towards the use of compulsory purchase powers. 

 

Page 10



 

 

5.3 Moving forward towards the implementation of the Regeneration Strategy 
thus requires a robust, adopted Local Plan. The proposed changes and their 
consultation will achieve this. 

 
6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 

 
6.1. There are two potential alternative routes forward. The first would be to 

submit the Local Plan as it is currently drafted. This is not recommended. 
The Local Plan would then not respond to a key piece of case law that has 
emerged since it was approved and would not have a 15 year time horizon 
from the date of adoption as required by the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
6.2. The other potential route forward would be to submit the plan as it is 

currently drafted along with a schedule of proposed changes for the 
inspector to consider. Under the Planning Inspectorate’s Procedural 
guidance13, these would then be considered by the inspector. That would be 
sufficient to address some of the concerns raised by statutory consultees 
(particularly the minor ones), and could have been a way forward. However, 
the extensive changes required to address the nutrient neutrality issue, and 
to extend the plan period, are fundamental to the content of the plan itself 
and go beyond minor amendments that should be suggested without 
consultation taking place. 

 
6.3. The proposed way forward consists of consulting on the proposed changes 

and including them as part of a consolidated plan to submit to the Secretary 
of State. This addresses the issues with the alternative options and provides 
a cleaner and simpler way forward with the examination of the Local Plan. 

 
7.0 Resource Implications 
 
7.1. Financial Implications – the need for this consultation was built into the 

2020/21 budget setting process. The costs of the examination have fed into 
the 2020/21 budget setting process. Given the timeframes, the examination 
(certainly expenditure related to it) would take place in the 2021/22 financial 
year. 

 
7.2. Human Resources Implications – there are no additional staffing 

requirements from the proposed course of action. 
 

7.3. Information Governance Implications – none. 
 
7.4. Other Resource Implication – none.  
 
8.0 Legal Implications 

 
8.1. The preparation of a Local Plan is governed by the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). The 
proposed consultation would form a consultation under Regulation 19 of 
those regulations.  

 
9.0 Risks 

                                                 
13 Available at www.gov.uk/government/publications/examining-local-plans-procedural-
practice 

Page 11

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/examining-local-plans-procedural-practice
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/examining-local-plans-procedural-practice


 

 

 
9.1. The Local Plan, since its inception, has been prepared in accordance with 

the relevant regulations and is underpinned by an extensive evidence base 
and statutory assessments. Some of the changes required are due to case 
law, which has not yet been further tested. As such, there is an element of 
intrinsic risk. However the proposed approach seeks to follow and implement 
the Council’s obligations robustly. 

 
10.0 Consultation 

 
10.1. Please see the main body of the report. 

 
11.0 Communication 

 
11.1. Please see the main body of the report 
 
12.0 Appendices: Appendix A: Havant Borough Local Plan with proposed changes. 

 
13.0 Background Papers: Pre-Submission Havant Borough Local Plan 2036, 

available at www.havant.gov.uk/localplan 
 

 
  

Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 18 June 2020 
S151 Officer: 18 June 2020 
Director: 15 June 2020 
Portfolio Holder: 12 June 2020 
 
Update for Full Council signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 24 August 2020 
S151 Officer: 24 August 2020 
Director: 14 August 2020 
Portfolio Holder: 24 August 2020 
 
Contact Officer: David Hayward 
Job Title: Planning Policy Manager 
Telephone: 023 9244 6174 
E-Mail: david.hayward@havant.gov.uk 

Page 12

http://www.havant.gov.uk/localplan

	Agenda
	2 Havant Borough Local Plan: Changes to the Pre-Submission Local Plan

